



**Lewiston Planning & Zoning Commission
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
September 9, 2026 - 5:30 PM
Bell Building – Second Floor Conference Room – 215 D Street
Lewiston, Idaho 83501**

Seating will be available on a first-come, first-served basis.

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. CITIZENS COMMENTS

An opportunity for citizens to address the Commission with comments and/or questions about Planning and Zoning Commission-related matters that are not a public hearing action item on this agenda. Citizens are asked to limit their time to three (3) minutes each.

III. ACTIVE AGENDA

A. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 26, 2026 MEETING MINUTES (ACTION ITEM)

B. PUBLIC HEARING AND RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL ON ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZA-07-26, FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS IN THE ZONING CODE (ACTION ITEM): The Commission will consider a Zoning Code Amendment to remove Article V. Floodplain Management, Sec. 37-133 through Sec. 37-138 from the Zoning Code and relocate the code sections in Lewiston City Code Chapter 10, Buildings and General Building Regulations. The Commission will make a recommendation on this matter to the City Council. - Action Item ()

IV. STAFF-COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS

A. SOLICITING COMMISSIONER ATTENDANCE FOR THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 23, 2026 (PUBLIC HEARINGS ON A ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION AND TWO ZONING CODE AMENDMENTS).

V. ADJOURNMENT - Action Item

The City of Lewiston is committed to providing access and reasonable accommodation in its services, programs, and activities and encourages qualified persons with disabilities to participate. If you anticipate needing any type of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided at this meeting, please contact Nikki Province, ADA Coordinator, at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting at 208-746-3671 x 6211.

August 26, 2026

The LEWISTON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION met in the Community Development Department Second Floor Conference Room at 215 “D” Street. Chair Iacoboni called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

I. CALL TO ORDER

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Gabriel Iacoboni, Chair; Emily Wolf, Vice Chair; Shaunita Cable; Zach Battles; Cynthia Ball arriving at 5:40 pm;

COMMISSIONERS EXCUSED: Kyle Harris;

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Joel Plaskon, City Planner; Dawn Ortiz, Community Development Office Supervisor; Jennifer Tengono, City Attorney;

II. CITIZENS COMMENTS

None

III. ACTIVE AGENDA

A. APPROVAL OF AUGUST 12, 2026 MEETING MINUTES (ACTION ITEM)

Commissioners Wolf and Cable moved and seconded, respectively, approval of the August 12, 2026 as written. The motion carried 4-0.

B. INITIATION OF ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZA-01-26 (ACTION ITEM):

Joel Plaskon, City Planner, provided a verbal presentation on the changes that will be made to eliminate the Planned Unit Development Zoning District and add options for limited, small-scale commercial use in various residential zones.

Commissioners Wolf and Chair Iacoboni moved and seconded, respectively, to initiate Zoning code amendments to eliminate the Planned Unit Development Zoning District and add options for limited, small-scale commercial use in various residential zones. The motion carried 4-0.

C. INITIATION OF ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZA-07-26 (ACTION ITEM)

Staff Plaskon provided a verbal presentation on the changes that will be made to eliminate the floodplain regulations from the Zoning Code, Chapter 37, and add them to the Building Code, Chapter 10.

Commissioners Battles and Cable moved and seconded, respectively, to initiate Zoning Code amendments to remove the floodplain regulations from the Zoning Code. The motion carried 4-0.

D. INITIATION OF ZONING CODE AMENDMENT ZA-05-26 (ACTION ITEM)

Staff Plaskon provided a verbal presentation on the changes that will be made to add a definition of and regulation for “starter home subdivisions” in order to comply with the 2026 legislative session’s Senate Bill 1352.

Commissioners Cable and Chair Iacoboni moved and seconded, respectively, to initiate Zoning code amendments related to “starter home subdivision”. The motion carried 4-0.

E. DISCUSSION ABOUT MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ALLOWANCE BY RIGHT VS BY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT IN THE MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL, R-3 ZONE. (DISCUSSION ITEM):

Staff Plaskon provided a verbal summary of the items provided in the meeting packet. Staff also stated a letter was received from Gem State Housing Alliance (Hollie Conde, representative thereof, attending the meeting virtually) recommending that the zone stay the same and opposing the idea of changing the code to require conditional use permits for multi-family residential in the R-3 Zone. She stated the reasons for such, as included in the letter provided by Gem State Housing Alliance.

Chair Iacoboni asked for confirmation of what the definition of multi-family housing is.

Staff Plaskon stated that 3 or more units are considered multi-family housing.

Commissioner Ball stated that this was brought to the commission and staff’s attention due to wanting to keep the residential neighborhoods established as residential, not larger multi-family housing being constructed and changing the structure of the neighborhood and that multi-family residential being allowed by right in established single family residential neighborhoods was harmful to them and that the expectations they have for the future of their neighborhoods should be protected through the conditional use permit process. Vice Chair Wolfe and Commissioner Cable said, in agreement with the information presented in the letter from Gem State Housing Alliance, that there was no evidence supporting that. Commissioners Battles and Cable and Vice Chair Wolfe believe that any change to the code regarding this matter should be based on facts and not on assumptions or fears.

Chair Iacoboni asked what safeguards are in place to protect existing single family residential neighborhoods from the possibility of a large, multi-family development happening in their neighborhood.

Staff Plaskon stated that it is building permits, building code, fire code, traffic impact, stormwater control, and zoning requirements.

Commissioners and staff discussed multiple current multi-family projects being constructed and some existing multi-family locations, standards of historic districts, historic overlays, and how the implications of amending the code to require conditional use permits vs. allowing by right multi-family residential. Planner Plaskon said that requiring conditional use permits for multi-family residential in the Medium Density Residential Zone was in contrast to what most local jurisdictions our size do in Idaho, based on his research presented in the meeting packet, and in contrast to the state and national trend. Also, discussed how to create an overlay zone as an option to give the “protection” from multi-family residential in the R-3 Zone for certain “cherished” and established single family residential neighborhoods.

Hollie asked what is the problem that changing multi-family to a conditional use would solve. Conditional use permits raise the cost of the project at the front end of the project, that resorts to the renter or buyer eventually absorbing these costs.

Jennifer Tengono, City Attorney, recommended the possibility of adding multiple levels to the definition of multi-family, which would just be a text change to the definition of multi-family, not a whole new zone itself.

Commissioners asked staff to provide draft language amending the code to allow multi-family residential by right for developments below a certain number of dwelling units (5?) and to require conditional use permits for those above that threshold. Chair Iacoboni said he wasn't necessarily inclined to take that route but that he'd like to find a compromise. He said he'd like to see if staff could research for the commission how many multi-family projects have been done in the last five years in the R-3 and the R-4 Zones and where they were located so the commission could also review that and discuss this matter more at a future meeting.

IV. STAFF-COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS:

A. Query of Commissioners for the September 9, 2026, meeting.

Commissioner Battles asked if there is a process for houses to be rebuilt in an M1 zone if there was a fire and if this can be brought up at another meeting, and the possibility of changing them to a commercial zone.

Staff Tengono recommended it stay off the Commission's agenda and be handled at a staff level for now.

Staff Plaskon stated there is a Comprehensive Plan work plan meeting next Tuesday.

All commissioners in attendance should be in attendance for the September 9, 2026, meeting.

Staff Ortiz asked if any commissioners are able to attend the interview on Monday for the potential new commissioner. Staff Tengono stated that only one commissioner should be in attendance. Chair Iacoboni will see if he can attend.

V. **ADJOURN**

There being no further business, Commissioner Ball and Chair Iacoboni moved and seconded, respectively, to adjourn. The motion carried 5-0, and the Planning and Zoning Commission adjourned at approximately 6:48 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

Dawn Ortiz,
Recording Secretary

Chairperson or Acting Chairperson
Planning and Zoning Commission

Approved this _____ day of _____, 2026.

Gem State Housing Alliance
C/O Hollie Conde, Advocacy Director
P.O. Box 2035
Boise, ID 83701
hollie@gemstatehousing.org



August 26, 2026

Lewiston Planning and Zoning Commission
215 D Street
Lewiston, ID 83501

Members of the Lewiston Planning and Zoning Commission:

Gem State Housing Alliance asks the commission to reject a proposed amendment that would require a conditional use permit for multifamily development in the R-3 zone. Before the commission acts, it's worth asking a threshold question: what problem does this amendment solve?

The R-3 zone was established to accommodate multifamily housing. Projects that meet its objective standards should continue to move forward with predictability. We are not aware of a documented pattern of harm from multifamily development in R-3 that would justify adding a new layer of review. If the commission has evidence of such a pattern, we'd welcome the opportunity to see it. If it does not, the amendment lacks a clear basis.

A CUP adds cost well before a shovel hits the ground.

Conditional use permits increase housing costs in ways that don't always surface in public discussion. They require applicants to spend money on applications, consultants, and legal review before knowing whether a project will be approved. They make accurate land valuation difficult, because a site's approved use is uncertain until a hearing concludes. The practical result is that some buildable sites get passed over before any application is filed. Industry estimates consistently place regulatory uncertainty at roughly 25% of total development costs. A CUP requirement adds to that burden directly, and those costs are passed to the people who rent or buy the homes.

Public hearings don't represent the full community.

Research from Harvard's Kennedy School found that participants at planning and zoning hearings skew older, skew toward longtime homeowners, and oppose new housing at substantially higher rates than the general public. Renters, young families, and people who would move to Lewiston if housing were available are rarely present — because they don't live there yet. A CUP process gives that narrow slice of the public meaningful power over projects that the city's own comprehensive plan supports. The 2044 Comprehensive Plan reflects a broader community vision. A hearing-by-hearing CUP process is a poor substitute.

The research doesn't support the concerns that typically drive these requests.

The objections most commonly raised at housing hearings — property values, crime, neighborhood character, infrastructure — are unsupported by research. NYU's Furman Center found no evidence that new multifamily construction reduces surrounding property values or causes neighborhood decline. Studies in multiple cities found no consistent relationship between higher residential density and higher crime rates. And recent research supported by the Pew Charitable Trusts found that infill housing in established neighborhoods costs substantially less in public infrastructure per home than housing built at the urban fringe.

The R-3 zone is functioning as intended.

Multifamily housing is currently permitted outright in R-3, and projects that meet adopted standards can proceed with a reasonable degree of certainty. Lewiston citizens looking for an affordable place to live are best served by clear rules that work, not by adding another layer of review. We ask the commission to identify a clear, documented need before amending a zone that is working as written and, absent that, to reject this proposal.

We appreciate the commission's consideration and are glad to discuss further.

Respectfully,

Hollie Conde
Advocacy Director, Gem State Housing Alliance

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Lewiston Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing at which you may provide testimony on

Wednesday September 9, 2026 at 5:30 pm.

**COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUILDING
2ND FLOOR MEETING ROOM,
215 D STREET LEWISTON, ID 83501**

Seating will be available on a first-come, first-served basis.

This public hearing will be to determine approval or denial of the following proposal:

- I. **ZONING CODE AMENDMENT, ZA-07-26, FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS IN THE ZONING CODE:** The Commission will consider a Zoning Code Amendment to remove Article V. Floodplain Management, Sec. 37-133 through Sec. 37-138 from the Zoning Code and relocate the code sections in Lewiston City Code Chapter 10, Buildings and General Building Regulations. The Commission will make a recommendation on this matter to the City Council.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION contact the Community Development Department at (208) 746-1318, 7261.

Submission of Written Comments/Testimony: To ensure that written comments can be forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission and relevant city staff prior to the hearing, please submit comments/testimony no later than **5:00 p.m. on Tuesday September 8, 2026** by: Emailing dortiz@cityoflewiston.org or mailing to: Dawn Ortiz, Community Development Department, PO Box 617, Lewiston, ID 83501.

Comments/Testimony for public hearings may also be given in-person at the meeting, during the public hearing.

Hearing notice publication date: Sunday August 23, 2026.

STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE, AND OBJECTIVES**A. Statutory Authority**

The Legislature of the State of Idaho, pursuant to Idaho Code §§ 46-1020 through 46-1024, authorizes local governments to adopt floodplain management ordinances that identify floodplains and minimum floodplain development standards to minimize flood hazards and protect human life, health, and property. Therefore, the City Council of the City of Lewiston, Idaho does hereby ordain as follows:

B. Findings of Fact

1. The flood hazard areas of the City of Lewiston are subject to periodic inundation that results in:
 - a. loss of life and property;
 - b. health and safety hazards;
 - c. disruption of commerce and governmental services;
 - d. extraordinary public expenditures for flood relief and protection; and
 - e. impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety, and general welfare.
2. These flood losses may be caused by development in flood hazard areas, which are inadequately elevated, flood-proofed, or otherwise unprotected from flood damages, and by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains causing increases in flood heights and velocities.
3. Local government units have the primary responsibility for planning, adopting, and enforcing land use regulations to accomplish proper floodplain management.

C. Statement of Purpose

The purpose of this ordinance is to promote public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas by provisions designed to:

1. Protect human life, health, and property;
 2. Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water purification and sewage treatment plants, water, and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets, and bridges located in floodplains;
 3. Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas;
 4. Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;
 5. Minimize the need for rescue and emergency services associated with flooding, generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
 6. Minimize prolonged business interruptions;
 7. Ensure potential buyers are notified the property is in an area of special flood hazard;
- and

8. Ensure those who occupy the areas of special flood hazard assume responsibility for their actions.

D. Objectives and Methods of Reducing Flood Losses

In order to accomplish its purpose, this ordinance includes methods and provisions to:

1. Require that development which is vulnerable to floods, including structures and facilities necessary for the general health, safety, and welfare of citizens, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;
2. Restrict or prohibit development which are dangerous to health, safety, and property due to water or erosion hazards, or which increase flood heights, velocities, or erosion;
3. Control filling, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase flood damage or erosion;
4. Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will unnaturally divert flood waters or that may increase flood hazards to other lands;
5. Preserve and restore natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers which carry and store flood waters.

Commented [MO1]: Mandatory ordinance language

Code Revisions:

Removing Article V, Sections 37-133 through Section 37-138, placing new text in Chapter 10, Changing the title of Chapter 10 to include Floodplain Management, Creating Articles I and II within Chapter 10 to separate adopted codes and Floodplain Management

Chapter 10 – Buildings and General Building Regulations and Floodplain Management

Article I. ADOPTED CODES AND INSPECTIONS

Sections 10-1 through 10-12

Article II. FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT

Sec. 10-13. Definitions.

Unless specifically defined in article II of this chapter, words or phrases used in this article shall be interpreted according to the meaning they have in common usage.

Accessory Structures (appurtenant structure): structures that are on the same parcel of property as a principal structure, the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. Accessory structures must be used for parking or storage, be small and represent a minimal investment by owners, and have low damage potential. FEMA considers size limits based on flood zone, where “small” means not larger than a one-story two-car garage (600 sq. ft.) in flood zones identified as A zones (A, AE, A1-30, AH, and AO). Examples of small accessory structures include, but are not limited to, detached garages, storage and tool sheds, and small boathouses. Accessory structures greater than 600 sq. ft. must have an approved variance prior to the start of construction.

See FEMA P-2140 for more information.

Commented [MO2]: New definition

Agricultural Structures (appurtenant structure): structures that are used exclusively for agricultural purposes or uses in connection with the production, harvesting, storage, raising, or drying of agricultural commodities and livestock. Some structures used for aquaculture are considered agricultural structures. Structures used for human habitation and those that are places of employment or entertainment, and structures with multiple or mixed purposes, do not satisfy the “exclusive use” requirement described below and are not agricultural structures. Agricultural structures greater than 600 sq. ft. must have an approved variance prior to the start of construction.

Commented [M03]: New definition

Appeal means a request for review of the floodplain administrator's interpretation of provisions of this article or request for a variance.

Area of special flood hazard is the land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one (1) percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. Zone designations on FIRMs include the letters A, AE, or V. Also known as the special flood hazard area (SFHA).

Base flood means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded each year. Also known as the “regulatory flood.”

Base flood elevation (BFE) means a determination by the Federal Insurance Administrator of the water surface elevations of the base flood, that is, the flood level that has a one percent or greater chance of occurrence in any given year. When the BFE has not been provided in a Special Flood Hazard Area, it may be obtained from engineering studies available from a Federal, State, or other source using FEMA-approved engineering methodologies. This elevation, when combined with the Freeboard, establishes the Flood Protection Elevation.

Commented [M04]: Delete old definition; add new definition

Basement means the portion of a structure including crawlspace with its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.

Building. See “Structure.”

Critical Facilities: facilities that are vital to flood response activities or critical to the health and safety of the public before, during, and after a flood, such as a hospital, emergency operations center, electric substation, police station, fire station, nursing home, school, vehicle and equipment storage facility, or shelter; and facilities that, if flooded, would make the flood problem and its impacts much worse, such as a hazardous materials facility, power generation facility, water utility, or wastewater treatment plant.

Commented [M05]: Delete old definition; add new definition

Datum or vertical datum means a base measurement point (or set of points) from which all elevations are determined. Historically, that common set of points has been the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929 (NGVD29). The vertical datum currently adopted by the federal government as a basis for measuring heights is the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88).

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures, or the construction of additions or substantial improvements to buildings, structures or accessory structures; the placement of mobile homes; mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations;

Digital FIRM (DFIRM) means digital flood insurance rate map. It depicts flood risk and zones and flood risk information. The DFIRM presents the flood risk information in a format suitable for electronic mapping applications.

Existing construction means a structure for which the "start of construction" commenced before January 20, 1982.

Existing manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured home park or subdivision where the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before January 20, 1982.

Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision means the preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed, including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) means the agency with the overall responsibility for administering the National Flood Insurance Program.

Flood or Flooding:

- (1) A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas from:
 - a. The overflow of inland or tidal waters.
 - b. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.
 - c. Mudslides (i.e., mudflows) which are proximately caused by flooding as defined in paragraph a.2. of this definition and are akin to a river of liquid and flowing mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas, as when earth is carried by a current of water and deposited along the path of the current.
- (2) The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable event which results in flooding as defined in paragraph a.1. of this definition.

Flood fringe means the portion of the floodplain outside of the floodway covered by floodwaters during the regulatory flood.

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means an official map of a community, issued by the Federal Insurance Administration, delineating the areas of special flood hazard and/or risk premium zones applicable to the community.

Flood insurance study (FIS) means the official report by the Federal Insurance Administration evaluating flood hazards and containing flood profiles, floodway boundaries and water surface elevations of the base flood.

Floodplain means the land that has been or may be covered by floodwaters, or is surrounded by floodwater and inaccessible, during the occurrence of the regulatory flood. The riverine floodplain includes the floodway and the flood fringe (Idaho Code § 46-1021).

Floodplain Management: the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, and flood plain management regulations.

Commented [M06]: Delete incomplete definition & add complete definition

Commented [M07]: Delete old mapping style definition

Commented [M08]: Optional definition, ok to delete

Floodplain Management Regulations: zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as a flood plain ordinance, grading ordinance, and erosion control ordinance), and other applications of police power. The term describes such state or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide standards for the purpose of flood damage prevention and reduction.

Commented [MO9]: Required definitions

Flood proofing means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their contents.

Flood protection elevation (FPE) means an elevation that corresponds to the elevation of the one (1) percent chance annual flood (base flood), plus any increase in flood elevation due to floodway encroachment, plus two (2) foot of freeboard. Therefore, the flood protection elevation for the City of Lewiston is equal to BFE plus allowed floodway elevation plus two (2) foot of freeboard.

Floodway (regulatory floodway) means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height.

Commented [MO10]: Delete old language, add new language

Freeboard means a factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for the purposes of floodplain management. Freeboard tends to compensate for the many unknown factors that could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and floodway conditions, such as wave action, obstructed bridge openings, debris and ice jams and the hydrologic effects of urbanization in a watershed. The Base Flood Elevation (BFE) plus the freeboard establishes the Flood Protection Elevation (FPE). Freeboard shall be 2 feet.

Commented [MO11]: Add last to sentences

Functionally dependent facility means a facility that cannot be used for its intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water, such as a docking or port facility necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, shipbuilding, or ship repair facilities. The term does not include long-term storage, manufacture, sales, or service facilities.

Highest adjacent grade (HAG) means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to construction, adjacent to the proposed walls of a structure. Refer to the Elevation Certificate, FEMA Form 81-31, for HAG related to building elevation information.

Historic structure means a structure that is:

- (1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the U.S. Department of the Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;
- (2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or to a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;
- (3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places and determined as eligible by states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or

- (4) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places and determined as eligible by communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either:
- a. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or
 - b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

Letter of map change (LOMC) means an official FEMA determination, by letter, to amend or revise effective flood insurance rate maps, flood boundary and floodway maps, and flood insurance studies. LOMCs are issued in the following categories:

- (1) *Letter of map amendment (LOMA)*. A revision based on technical data showing that a property was incorrectly included in a designated special flood hazard area. A LOMA amends the current effective flood insurance rate map and establishes that a specific property is not located in a special flood hazard area.
- (2) *Letter of map revision (LOMR)*. A revision based on technical data showing that, usually due to manmade changes, shows changes to flood zones, flood elevations, floodplain and floodway delineations, and plan metric features. One common type of LOMR, a LOMR-F, is a determination that a structure or parcel has been elevated by fill above the base flood elevation and is excluded from the special flood hazard area.
- (3) *Conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR)*. A formal review and comment by FEMA as to whether a proposed project complies with the minimum National Flood Insurance Program floodplain management criteria. A CLOMR does not amend or revise effective flood insurance rate maps, flood boundary and floodway maps, or flood insurance studies.

- (4) *Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F)*: FEMA's modification of the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) based on the placement of fill outside the existing regulatory floodway. The LOMR-F does not change the FIRM, FBFM, or FIS report.

Levee means a manmade structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and constructed according to sound engineering practices, to contain, control, or divert the flow of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding.

Levee system means a flood protection system that consists of a levee, or levees, and associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated in accordance with sound engineering practices.

Lowest adjacent grade (LAG) means the lowest point of the ground level next to the structure. Refer to the Elevation Certificate, FEMA Form 81-31, for LAG related to building elevation information.

Lowest floor means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; Provided, that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design requirements of 44 CFR § 60.3 and this ordinance.

Manufactured home means a structure, transportable in one (1) or more sections built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when

Commented [M012]: You may want to include this definition

Commented [M013]: Delete obsolete language & insert new definition

connected to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a "recreational vehicle."

Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision: a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

Commented [M014]: Required definition

Mean sea level means, for purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, to which base flood elevations shown on a community's FIRM are referenced.

New Construction: for floodplain management purposes, a structure for which the start of construction commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain management regulation adopted by a community and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures. Any construction started after January 20, 1982 and before the effective start date of this floodplain management ordinance is subject to the ordinance in effect at the time the permit was issued, provided the start of construction was within 180 days of permit issuance.

Commented [M015]: Delete old definition, insert required definition

New manufactured home park or subdivision means a place where the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after January 20, 1982.

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle that is:

- (1) Built on a single chassis; and
- (2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; and
- (3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towed by a light duty truck; and
- (4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

This includes tiny homes and park model manufactured homes.

Commented [M016]: Include tiny homes...

Regulatory floodway means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height.

Repetitive Loss Structure: An NFIP-insured structure that has had at least two paid flood losses of more than \$1,000 each in any 10-year period since 1978. Repetitive loss structure means a structure covered under an NFIP flood insurance policy that:

- (1) Has incurred flood-related damage on 2 occasions, in which the cost of repair, on average, equaled or exceeded 25% of the value of the structure at the time of each such flood event; and
- (2) At the time of the second incidence of flood related damage, the contract for flood insurance contains increased cost of compliance coverage.

Commented [M017]: Delete old definition, insert new definition

Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA): the land in the flood plain within a community subject to a one percent (1%) or greater chance of flooding in any given year. For purposes of these regulations, the term "special flood hazard area" is synonymous in meaning with the phrase "area of special flood hazard".

Commented [M018]: Required definition

Start of construction includes substantial improvement and means the date the development permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within one hundred eighty (180) days of the permit date. The "actual start" means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on

a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the "actual start of construction" means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not the alteration affects the external dimensions of a building.

Structure means a walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home.

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of its market value before the damage occurred.

Substantial improvement means reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the "start of construction" of the improvement. This term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The market value of the structure should be (1) the appraised value of the structure prior to the start of the initial repair or improvement, or (2) in the case of damage, the value of the structure prior to the damage occurring. This term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual amount of repair work performed. The term does not include either:

- (1) A project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications, which have been identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or
- (2) Alteration of a historic structure; provided, that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure.

Variance means a grant of relief by the governing body from a requirement of this article.

Violation: the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the community's flood plain management regulations. A structure or other development without the Finished Construction Elevation Certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in 44 CFR § 60.3(b)(5), (c)(4), (c)(10), (d)(3), (e)(2), (e)(4), or (e)(5) is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

Commented [MO19]: Required definition

Water surface elevation means the height, in relation to the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 (or other specified datum) of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or riverine areas.

(Ord. No. 4108, § 2, 8-15-94; Ord. No. 4190, § 1, 4-7-97; Ord. No. 4579, § 2, 9-10-12)

Sec. 10-14. General provisions.

- (a) *Lands to which this article applies.* This article shall apply to all special flood hazard areas within the jurisdiction of the City of Lewiston. Nothing in this article is intended to allow uses or structures that are otherwise prohibited by the zoning ordinance.
- (b) *Basis for area of special flood hazard.* The special flood hazard areas identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in its flood insurance study (FIS) for the Nez Perce County, Idaho and Incorporated Areas dated October 29, 2026 with accompanying digital flood insurance rate maps (DFIRM), and other supporting data, are adopted by reference and declared a part of this article. The FIS and the FIRM are on file at the office of community development with the Building Official, 215 D Street, Lewiston, Idaho.
- (c) *Establishment of floodplain development permit.* A floodplain development permit shall be required prior to development activities in special flood hazard areas established in subsection (b) of this section.
- (d) *Compliance.* No structure or land shall hereafter be located, extended, converted, altered, or developed in any way without full compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable regulations.
- (e) *Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.* This ordinance shall not in any way repeal, abrogate, impair, or remove the necessity of compliance with any other laws, ordinances, regulations, easements, covenants, or deed restrictions, etcetera. However, where this ordinance and another conflict or overlap, whichever imposes more stringent or greater restrictions shall control.
- (f) *Interpretation.* In the interpretation and application of this article all provisions shall be:
- (1) Considered as minimum requirements;
 - (2) Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and
 - (3) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes.
- (g) *Warning and disclaimer of liability.* The degree of flood protection required by this article is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur. Flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This article does not imply that land outside the special flood hazard areas or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This article shall not create liability on the part of the City of Lewiston or by any officer or employee thereof for flood damages that result from reliance on this article or an administrative decision lawfully made hereunder.
- (h) *Penalties for Violation.* No structure or land shall hereafter be located, extended, converted, or altered unless in full compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable regulations. Violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements, including violation of conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of variance or special exceptions, shall constitute a misdemeanor. Any person who violates this ordinance or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall, upon conviction thereof, be fined not more than \$100 or imprisoned for not more than 180 days, or both. Each day the violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the City of

Commented [MO20]: Updated with title of the new maps & FIS, & new date

Commented [MO21]: Mandatory required language to be compliant with the NFIP

Lewiston from taking such other lawful actions as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

Commented [M022]: Mandatory required language to be compliant with the NFIP

Sec. 10-15. Administration.

- (a) *Designation of floodplain ordinance administrator.* The Building Official is hereby appointed as the floodplain administrator who is responsible for administering and implementing the provisions of this article.
- (b) Floodplain Development Application, Permit, and Certification Requirements
 - (1) Application Requirements. Application for a Floodplain Development Permit shall be made to the Floodplain Administrator prior to any development activities located within Special Flood Hazard Areas. The following items shall be presented to the Floodplain Administrator to apply for a floodplain development permit:
 - a. A plot plan drawn to scale which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following specific details of the proposed floodplain development:
 - i. the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area of development/disturbance; existing and proposed structures, utility systems, grading/pavement areas, fill materials, storage areas, drainage facilities, and other development;
 - ii. the boundary of the Special Flood Hazard Area as delineated on the FIRM or other flood map as determined in Section 10-14 (b), or a statement that the entire lot is within the Special Flood Hazard Area;
 - iii. the flood zone(s) designation of the proposed development area as determined on the FIRM or other flood map as determined in Section 10-14 (b);
 - iv. the boundary of the floodway(s) as determined in Section 10-14 (b);
 - v. the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) where provided as set forth in Section 10-14 (b); Section 10-14 (c); or Section 10-16 (b);
 - vi. the old and new location of any watercourse that will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development; and
 - vii. the certification of the plot plan by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer. (vii is OPTIONAL)
 - b. Proposed elevation, and method thereof, of all development within a Special Flood Hazard Area including but not limited to:
 - i. Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the proposed lowest floor (including basement) of all structures;
 - ii. Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure in Zone A, or AE, will be floodproofed; and
 - iii. Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any proposed utility equipment and machinery will be elevated or floodproofed.
 - c. If floodproofing, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-153) with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan that include, but are not limited to, installation, exercise, and maintenance of floodproofing measures will be required prior to Certificate of Occupancy/Completion.

- d. A Foundation Plan, drawn to scale, which shall include details of the proposed foundation system to ensure all provisions of this ordinance are met. These details include but are not limited to:
 - i. The proposed method of elevation, if applicable (i.e., fill, solid foundation perimeter walls, solid backfilled foundation, open foundation, or on columns/posts/piers/piles/shear walls); and
 - ii. Openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on walls in accordance with Section 10-16 (a)(8)b. when solid foundation perimeter walls are used in Zones A, or AE.
 - e. Usage details of any enclosed areas below the lowest floor.
 - f. Plans and/or details for the protection of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems to be located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
 - g. Certification that all other Local, State, and Federal permits required prior to floodplain development permit issuance have been received.
 - h. Documentation for placement of recreational vehicles and/or temporary structures, when applicable, to ensure that the provisions of Section 10-16 (b) (5) and (6) of this ordinance are met.
 - i. A description of proposed watercourse alteration or relocation, when applicable, including an engineering report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to properties located both upstream and downstream; and
 - ii. A map (if not shown on plot plan) showing the location of the proposed watercourse alteration or relocation. (This is a Hydraulic & Hydrology Analysis, & may involve the LOMC procedure)
- (2) Permit Requirements. The Floodplain Development Permit shall include, but not be limited to:
- a. A complete description of all the development to be permitted under the floodplain development permit (i.e. house, garage, pool, septic, bulkhead, cabana, pole barn, chicken coop, pier, bridge, mining, dredging, filling, riprap, docks, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials, etcetera).
 - b. The Special Flood Hazard Area determination for the proposed development in accordance with available data specified in Section 10-14(b).
 - c. The Flood Protection Elevation required for the lowest floor and all attendant utilities.
 - d. The Flood Protection Elevation required for the protection of all utility equipment and machinery.
 - e. All certification submittal requirements with timelines.
 - f. A statement that no fill material or other development shall encroach into the floodway of any watercourse, as applicable.
 - g. The flood openings requirements, if in Zones A, or AE.
 - h. All floodplain development permits shall be conditional upon the start of construction of work within 180 days. A floodplain development permit shall

- expire 180 days after issuance unless the permitted activity has commenced as per the Start of Construction definition.
- i. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage.
 - j. All materials below BFE/FPE must be flood resistant materials.
- (3) Certification Requirements.
- a. Elevation Certificates
 - i. A Construction Drawings Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-152) is required prior to the actual start of any new construction. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the elevation of the lowest floor, in relation to mean sea level. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder prior to the beginning of construction. Failure to submit the certification or failure to make required corrections shall be cause to deny a floodplain development permit. (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)
 - ii. A Building Under Construction Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-152) is required after the lowest floor is established. Within seven (7) calendar days of establishment of the lowest floor elevation, it shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the elevation of the lowest floor, in relation to mean sea level. Any work done within the seven (7) day calendar period and prior to submission of the certification shall be at the permit holder's risk. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to further work being permitted to proceed. Failure to submit the certification or failure to make required corrections shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project. (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)
 - iii. A final as-built Finished Construction Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-152) is required after construction is completed and prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of final as-built construction of the elevation of the lowest floor and all attendant utilities. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance. In some instances, another certification may be required to certify corrected as-built construction. Failure to submit the certification or failure to make required corrections shall be cause to withhold the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. (The Finished Construction Elevation Certificate certifier shall attach at least two (2) and when possible four (4) clear color photographs (one for each side) of the building taken within 90 days from the date of

certification. The photographs must be taken with views confirming the building description and diagram number provided in Section A. To the extent possible, these photographs should show the entire building including foundation. If the building has split-level or multi-level areas, provide at least two (2) additional photographs showing side views of the building. In addition, when applicable, provide a photograph of the foundation showing a representative example of the flood openings or vents. All photographs must be in color and measure at least 3" x 3". Digital photographs are acceptable. OPTIONAL language)

- b. Floodproofing Certificate. If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Flood Protection Elevation requirements, design plans, with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are required prior to the actual start of any new construction. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the floodproofed design elevation of the lowest floor and all attendant utilities, in relation to mean sea level. Floodproofing certification shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified by same. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data, the operational plan, and the inspection and maintenance plan. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the applicant prior to permit approval. Failure to submit the certification or failure to make required corrections shall be cause to deny a Floodplain Development Permit. Prior to requesting a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form FF-206-FY-22-153) shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator for review and approval.
- c. If a manufactured home (includes tiny home or park model) is placed within Zone A, or AE and the elevation of the chassis is more than 36 inches in height above grade, an engineered foundation certification is required in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-16 (b)(3)b.
- d. If a watercourse is to be altered or relocated, the following shall all be submitted by the permit applicant prior to issuance of a floodplain development permit:
 - i. a description of the extent of watercourse alteration or relocation; and
 - ii. a professional engineer's certified report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to properties located both upstream and downstream; and
 - iii. a map showing the location of the proposed watercourse alteration or relocation; and
 - iv. an Idaho Stream Channel Alteration Permit approval shall be provided by the applicant to the Floodplain Administrator.
- e. Certification Exemptions. The following structures are exempt from the elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified in items a. and b. of this subsection:
 - i. Recreational Vehicles meeting requirements of Section 10-16 (b)(5)a.;

- ii. Temporary Structures meeting requirements of Section 10-16 (b)(6); and
 - iii. Accessory Structures less than 200 square feet meeting requirements of Section 10-16 (b)(7).
- (4) Determinations for Existing Buildings and Structures. For applications for building permits to improve buildings and structures, including alterations, movement, enlargement, replacement, repair, change of occupancy, additions, rehabilitations, renovations, improvements, repairs of damage, and any other improvement of or work on such buildings and structures, the Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with the Building Official, shall:
- a. Estimate the market value or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser of the building or structure before the start of construction of the proposed work. In the case of repair, the market value of the building or structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and before any repairs are made;
 - b. Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure;
 - c. Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage; and
 - d. Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction requirements of the adopted Idaho Building Code and this ordinance is required.
- (5) Any other information deemed necessary for review of public safety and floodplain management requirements by the floodplain administrator.
- (c) *Duties and responsibilities of the administrator.* The Floodplain Administrator shall perform, but not be limited to, the following duties:
- (1) Review all floodplain development applications and issue permits for all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied and all proposed development is reasonably safe from flooding.
 - (2) Review all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that all necessary Local, State, and Federal permits have been received, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 USC 1334, and IDAPA 37-03-07.
 - (3) Notify adjacent communities and the Idaho Department of Water Resources State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal Insurance Administrator (FIA). *(This is the LOMC procedure)*
 - (4) Assure that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of any watercourse is maintained; *(This is a Hydraulic & Hydrology Analysis)*

Commented [MO23]: delete outdated language, insert new language

- (5) Prevent encroachments into floodways unless the certification and flood hazard reduction provisions of Section 10-16(e) are met.
- (6) Obtain and maintain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement) and all attendant utilities of all new and substantially improved structures, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-15(b)(3).
- (7) Obtain and maintain actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which all new and substantially improved structures and utilities have been floodproofed, in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-15(b)(3).
- (8) Review plans to verify public utilities are constructed in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-16 (a)(5)-(7).
- (9) When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, obtain, and maintain certifications from a registered professional engineer or architect in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-15 (b)(3) and Section 10-16 (b)(2).
- (10) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Areas, and floodways (for example, where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions), make the necessary interpretation. The person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in this article.
- (11) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has not been provided in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-14(b), obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any BFE data, along with floodway data available from a Federal, State, or other source, including data developed pursuant to Section 10-16 (a)(16), in order to administer the provisions of this ordinance.
- (12) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided but no floodway data has been provided in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-14 (b), require that no new construction, substantial improvements, or other development (including fill) shall be permitted within Zones A1-30 and AE on the community's FIRM, unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one foot at any point within the community. *(This is a Hydraulic & Hydrology Analysis)*
- (13) When the lowest floor and the lowest adjacent grade of a structure or the lowest ground elevation of a parcel in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) is above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE), advise the property owner of the option to apply for a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) from FEMA. Maintain a copy of the LOMA issued by FEMA in the floodplain development permit file. *(13 is OPTIONAL)*
- (14) Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the administration of this ordinance and make these records available for public inspection, recognizing that such information may be subject to the Privacy Act of 1974, as amended.
- (15) Make on-site inspections of work in progress. As the work pursuant to a floodplain development permit progresses, the Floodplain Administrator shall make as many inspections of the work as may be necessary to ensure that the work is being done according to the provisions of the local ordinance and the terms of the permit. In

exercising this power, the Floodplain Administrator has a right, upon presentation of proper credentials, to enter on any premises within the jurisdiction of the community at any reasonable hour for the purposes of inspection or other enforcement action.

- (16) Issue stop-work orders as required. Whenever a building or part thereof is being constructed, reconstructed, altered, or repaired in violation of this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator may order the work to be immediately stopped. The stop-work order shall be in writing and directed to the person doing or in charge of the work. The stop-work order shall state the specific work to be stopped, the specific reason(s) for the stoppage, and the condition(s) under which the work may be resumed. Violation of a stop-work order constitutes a misdemeanor.
- (17) Revoke floodplain development permits as required. The Floodplain Administrator may revoke and require the return of the floodplain development permit by notifying the permit holder in writing stating the reason(s) for the revocation. Permits shall be revoked for any substantial departure from the approved application, plans, and specifications; for refusal or failure to comply with the requirements of State or local laws; or for false statements or misrepresentations made in securing the permit. Any floodplain development permit mistakenly issued in violation of an applicable State or local law may also be revoked.
- (18) Make periodic inspections throughout the Special Flood Hazard Areas within the jurisdiction of the community. The Floodplain Administrator and each member of his or her inspections department shall have a right, upon presentation of proper credentials, to enter on any premises within the territorial jurisdiction of the department at any reasonable hour for the purposes of inspection or other enforcement action.
- (19) Follow through with corrective procedures of Section 10-18.
- (20) Review, provide input, and make recommendations for variance requests.
- (21) Maintain a current map repository to include, but not limited to, the FIS Report, FIRM and other official flood maps, and studies adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-14 (b) of this ordinance, including any revisions thereto including Letters of Map Change, issued by FEMA. Notify the NFIP State Coordinator and FEMA of your community's mapping needs.
- (22) Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including Letters of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-Fs) and Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs).
- (23) A community's base flood elevations may increase or decrease resulting from physical changes affecting flooding conditions. As soon as practicable, but not later than six months after the date such information becomes available, a community shall notify the Federal Insurance Administrator (FIA) of the changes by submitting technical or scientific data in accordance with this part. Such a submission is necessary so that upon confirmation of those physical changes affecting flooding conditions, risk premium rates and flood plain management requirements will be based upon current data.
- (24) Upon occurrence, notify the Federal Insurance Administrator (FIA) in writing whenever the boundaries of the community have been modified by annexation or

the community has otherwise assumed or no longer has authority to adopt and enforce flood plain management regulations for a particular area. In order that all FHBM's and FIRM's accurately represent the community's boundaries, include within such notification a copy of a map of the community suitable for reproduction, clearly delineating the new corporate limits or new area for which the community has assumed or relinquished flood plain management regulatory authority.

(25) A temporary Certificate of Occupancy (C/O) or Temporary Certificate of Compliance (C/C) will NEVER be issued for any structure in the floodplain.

(26) When damage occurs to a building or buildings, the following actions shall be conducted:

- a. Determine whether damaged structures are located within the SFHA;
- b. Conduct damage assessments for those damaged structures located in the SFHA; and
- c. Make a reasonable attempt to notify owner(s) of damaged structure(s) of the requirement to obtain a building permit/floodplain development permit prior to repair, rehabilitation, or reconstruction.

Commented [MO24]: Delete old language, insert new language

Sec. 10-16. Provisions for flood hazard reduction.

(a) General Standards

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas, the following provisions are required:

- (1) All new construction, substantial improvements, and development shall be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.
- (2) All new construction, substantial improvements, and development shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage in accordance with the Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements, and available from the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
- (3) All new construction, substantial improvements, and development shall be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damages.
- (4) All new and replacement electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding to the Flood Protection Elevation. These include, but are not limited to, HVAC equipment, water softener units, bath/kitchen fixtures, ductwork, electric/gas meter panels/boxes, utility/cable boxes, hot water heaters, and electric outlets/switches.

- (5) All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the system.
- (6) All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters.
- (7) On-site waste disposal systems (i.e. septic systems) shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding.
- (8) A fully enclosed area, of new construction and substantially improved structures, which is below the lowest floor used solely for parking, access, and storage shall:
 - a. be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at least to the Flood Protection Elevation; and
 - b. include, in Zones A, and AE, flood openings to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. To meet this requirement, the openings must either be certified by a professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following minimum design criteria:
 - i. A minimum of two flood openings on different sides of each enclosed area subject to flooding;
 - ii. The total net area of all flood openings must be at least one (1) square inch for each square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;
 - iii. If a building has more than one enclosed area, each enclosed area must have flood openings to allow floodwaters to automatically enter and exit;
 - iv. The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above the interior or exterior adjacent grade;
 - v. Flood openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices, provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions; and
 - vi. Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not considered enclosures for regulatory purposes, and, therefore, do not require flood openings. Masonry or flood resistant wood underpinning, regardless of structural status, is considered an enclosure and requires flood openings as outlined above.
- (9) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in compliance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of "new construction" as contained in this ordinance.
- (10) Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the repair, reconstruction, or replacement of a building or structure existing on the effective date of this ordinance and located totally or partially within the floodway, or stream setback, provided there is no additional encroachment below the Flood Protection Elevation in the floodway, or stream setback, and provided that such repair, reconstruction, or replacement meets all of the other requirements of this ordinance.
- (11) New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities shall not be permitted,

except by variance as specified in Section 10-17(a)(9). A structure or tank for chemical or fuel storage incidental to an allowed use or to the operation of a water treatment plant or wastewater treatment facility may be located in a Special Flood Hazard Area only if the structure or tank is either elevated or floodproofed to at least the Flood Protection Elevation and certified in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-15(b)(3).

- (12) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and determined to be reasonably safe from flooding.
- (13) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.
- (14) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.
- (15) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have received all necessary permits from those governmental agencies for which approval is required by Federal or State law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 USC 1334, and IDAPA 37-03-07.
- (16) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals greater than 50 lots or 5 acres, whichever is the lesser, shall include within such proposals base flood elevation data.
- (17) When a structure is partially located in a Special Flood Hazard Area, the entire structure shall meet the requirements for new construction and substantial improvements.
- (18) When a structure is located in multiple flood hazard zones or in a flood hazard risk zone with multiple base flood elevations, the provisions for the more restrictive flood hazard risk zone and the highest Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall apply.
- (19) Fill is prohibited in the SFHA, including construction of buildings on fill. This includes not signing the Community Acknowledgement page for Conditional Letters or Letters of Map Revision (CLOMR-F or LOMR-F). (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)
- (20) A temporary Certificate of Occupancy (C/O) or Temporary Certificate of Compliance (C/C) will NEVER be issued for any structure in the floodplain.

(b) *Specific Standards*

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has been provided, as set forth in this ordinance, the following provisions, in addition to the other provisions of this ordinance, are required:

- (1) Residential Construction. New construction, substantial improvements, and development of any residential structure (including manufactured homes, tiny homes, and park models) shall have the lowest floor, including basement, and utilities including ductwork, elevated no lower than the Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Section 10-13 of this ordinance.

- (2) Non-Residential Construction. New construction, substantial improvements, and development of any commercial, industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the lowest floor, including basement, and utilities including ductwork, elevated no lower than the Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Section 10-13 of this ordinance. Structures located in Zones A, and AE may be floodproofed to the Flood Protection Elevation in lieu of elevation provided that all areas of the structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, below the Flood Protection Elevation are watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effect of buoyancy. For AH and AO Zones, the floodproofing elevation shall be in accordance with Section 10-16(d). A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the floodproofing standards of this subsection are satisfied. Such certification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator as set forth in Section 10-15(b)(3), along with the operational plan and the inspection and maintenance plan.
- (3) Manufactured Homes.
- a. New and replacement manufactured homes (including tiny homes, and park models) shall be elevated so that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is no lower than the Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Section 10-13 of this ordinance.
 - b. Manufactured homes (including tiny homes, and park models) shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, either by certified engineered foundation system, or in accordance with the most current edition of the Idaho Division of Occupational & Professional Licenses "Idaho Manufactured Home Installation Standard" in accordance with Idaho Code § 44-2201(2). Additionally, when the elevation would be met by an elevation of the chassis thirty-six (36) inches or less above the grade at the site, the chassis shall be supported by reinforced piers or engineered foundation. When the elevation of the chassis is above thirty-six (36) inches in height, an engineering certification is required.
 - c. All enclosures or skirting below the lowest floor shall meet the requirements of Section 10-16(a)(8) a. and b.
 - d. An evacuation plan must be developed for the evacuation of all residents of all new, substantially improved, or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or subdivisions located within flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved by the Floodplain Administrator and the local Emergency Management Coordinator.
- (4) Additions/Improvements.
- a. Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are
 - i. not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements must be designed to minimize flood damages and must not be any more non-conforming than the existing structure; or
 - ii. a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.

- b. Additions to non-compliant post-FIRM structures that are a substantial improvement with no modifications to the existing structure other than a standard door in the common wall shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new construction.
 - c. Additions and/or improvements to non-compliant post-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are
 - i. not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements only must comply with the standards for new construction; or
 - ii. a substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.
 - d. Any combination of repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or improvement of a building or structure taking place during a five (5) year period, the cumulative cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent (50%) of the market value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started, must comply with the standards for new construction. For each building or structure, the five (5) year period begins on the date of the first improvement or repair of that building or structure subsequent to the effective date of this ordinance. If the structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs are considered substantial improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed. The requirement does not, however, include either:
 - i. any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary, or safety code violations identified by the building official and that are the minimum necessary to assume safe living conditions; or
 - ii. any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure.
- (5) Recreational Vehicles. Recreational vehicles shall be either:
- a. Temporary Placement
 - i. be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities, and has no permanently attached additions); or
 - b. Permanent Placement.
 - i. Recreational vehicles (including tiny homes, and park models) that do not meet the limitations of Temporary Placement shall meet all the requirements for new construction, as set forth in Section 10-16 (a), (b)(1) and (b)(3).
- (6) Temporary Non-Residential Structures. (i.e. construction trailers, et cetera)
- Prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for a temporary structure, the applicant must submit to the Floodplain Administrator a plan for the removal of such structure(s) in the event of a flash flood or other type of flood warning notification. The following information shall be submitted in writing to the Floodplain Administrator for review and written approval:
- a. a specific time period for which the temporary use will be permitted. Time specified may not exceed six (6) months, renewable up to one (1) year;

- b. the name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for the removal of the temporary structure;
- c. the time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed (i.e., immediately upon flood warning notification);
- d. a copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with the entity responsible for physical removal of the structure; and
- e. designation, accompanied by documentation, of a location outside the Special Flood Hazard Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved.
- f. Temporary structures in the floodway must provide a Hydraulic and Hydrology Analysis along with a No-Rise Certification.

(7) *Accessory and Agricultural Structures (Appurtenant structures).*

When single-story accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc. used solely for parking, and storage) are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, elevation or floodproofing certifications are required for all single-story accessory structures in accordance with Section 10-15(b)(3), and the following criteria shall be met:

- a. Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including working, sleeping, living, cooking, or restroom areas);
- b. Accessory structures shall not be temperature-controlled;
- c. Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential;
- d. Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters;
- e. Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-16(a)(1); and
- f. All utility equipment and machinery, such as electrical, shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-16(a)(4); and
- g. Accessory structures greater than 600 sq. ft., proposed to have the lowest floor below the Flood Protection Elevation (wet floodproofed), must have an approved variance prior to the start of construction.
- h. For accessory structures less than 200 sq. ft. (and is a minimal investment of less than \$7,500, and used solely for parking or storage, flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided below the Flood Protection Elevation in conformance with the provisions of Section 10-16(a)(8) in lieu of elevation.
- i. For accessory structures 600 sq. ft. or larger used solely for parking or storage and that are not elevated to the Flood Protection Elevation (wet flood proofed), a variance is required for flood proofing in lieu of elevation.
- j. Accessory structures not used solely for parking or storage must be elevated per Section 10-16 (b)(1) and (b)(2)
- k. An accessory structure with a footprint of less than 200 square feet and is a minimal investment of less than \$7,500 and satisfies all the criteria outlined in a - f above is not required to provide the elevation certificate per Section 10-16(b)(2).
- l. Two-story accessory structures must have their lowest floor elevated to the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) or the Flood Protection Elevation (FPE).

(8) Tanks.

When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:

- a. Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the base flood, including the effects of buoyancy (assuming the tank is empty);
- b. Elevated above-ground tanks, in flood hazard areas shall be attached to an elevated to or above the design flood elevation on a supporting structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement during conditions of the base flood. Tank-supporting structures shall meet the foundation requirements of the applicable flood hazard area;
- c. Not elevated above-ground tanks may be permitted in flood hazard areas provided the tanks are anchored or otherwise designed and constructed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is empty and the effects of flood-borne debris.
- d. Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:
 - i. at or above the flood protection elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the base flood; and
 - ii. anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the base flood.

(9) Construction of a Below-Grade Crawlspace Foundation.

Must meet all the following requirements, including:

- a. The structure must be designed and adequately anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy.
- b. Flood openings must be installed that allow for the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.
- c. The portions of the structure below the BFE (plus freeboard) must be constructed with materials resistant to flood damage. This includes not only the foundation walls of the crawlspace used to elevate the building, but also any joists, insulation, or other materials that extend below the BFE.
- d. The interior grade of a crawlspace must not be more than two (2) feet below the exterior lowest adjacent grade (LAG).
- e. The height of the below-grade crawlspace, measured from the interior grade of the crawlspace to the top of the crawlspace sill plate, must not exceed four (4) feet at any point.
- f. There must be an adequate drainage system that removes floodwaters from the interior area of the crawlspace. The enclosed area should be drained within a reasonable time after a flood event.
- g. The velocity of floodwaters at the site should not exceed five (5) feet per second.

See Technical Bulletin 11 for further information.

Caution: Buildings that have below-grade crawlspaces may have higher flood insurance premiums than buildings that have the preferred crawlspace construction, with the interior elevation of the crawlspace soil at or above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE).

(10) Subdivision Plats.

Flood zones.

- a. A note must be provided on the final plat documenting the current flood zone in which the property or properties are located. The boundary line must be drawn on the plat in situations where two or more flood zones intersect over the property or properties being surveyed.

- b. *FEMA FIRM panel(s): #160xxxxxC, & 160xxxxxE, etc.*

FIRM effective date(s): mm/dd/year

Flood Zone(s): Zone X, Zone A, Zone AE, Zone AO, Zone AH, Zone D, etc.

Base Flood Elevation(s): AE _____.0 ft., etc.

Flood Zones are subject to change by FEMA & all land within a floodway or floodplain is regulated by Chapter 10 Article II of the Lewiston City Code.

(11) Critical Facilities:

Construction of new critical facilities shall be, to the extent possible, located outside the limits of the special flood hazard area (SFHA) (100-year floodplain). Construction of new critical facilities shall be permissible within the SFHA if no feasible alternative site is available. Critical facilities constructed within the SFHA shall have the lowest floor elevated three feet (3') above BFE or to the height of the 500-year flood, whichever is higher. Access to and from the critical facility should also be protected to the height utilized above. Floodproofing and sealing measures must be taken to ensure that toxic substances will not be displaced by or released into floodwaters. Access routes elevated to or above the level of the base flood elevation shall be provided to all critical facilities to the extent possible.

As a best practice, FEMA recommends protection that exceeds code minimums. For example, FEMA 543, Design Guide for Improving Critical Facility Safety from Flooding and High Winds (2007) recommends protecting critical facilities to withstand at least a 0.2-percent-annual-chance flood event (often called the "500-year flood event"). Flood elevations for the 0.2-percent-annual-chance flood may be greater than the elevation specified by ASCE 24. If federal funding or other Federal action is involved, the requirements of Executive Order 11988 – Floodplain Management may necessitate protection of critical actions to the 500-year flood elevation (critical actions may include the construction and repair of critical facilities). (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL) In existing facilities that have not been substantially damaged, it may not be possible to floodproof or elevate to provide protection from the 0.2-percent-annual-chance flood event. In those instances, floodproofing or elevating as high as practical is recommended.

Three (3) feet is State-recommendation, greater than three (3) feet is OPTIONAL.

- (12) Compensatory Storage: New development shall not reduce the effective flood storage volume of the Regulatory Floodway and SFHA. At a minimum, a development proposal shall provide compensatory storage if grading or other activity eliminates any effective flood storage volume. This is a Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analysis with No-Rise Certification. Compensatory storage shall:

- a. Provide equivalent volume at equivalent elevations to that being displaced. For this purpose, "equivalent elevation" means having similar relationship to ordinary high water and the best available one hundred (100) year water surface profiles;
- b. Be hydraulically connected to the source of flooding; and
- c. Provide compensatory storage in the same construction season as when the displacement of flood storage volume occurs and before the flood season begins.
- d. The newly created storage area shall be graded and vegetated to allow fish access during flood events without creating fish stranding sites. (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)

(13) Pit, Mine, Quarry, or Gravel Extraction: Approval of a CLOMR shall be required as a condition of approval for any proposed pit, mine, quarry, or gravel extraction. The CLOMR application shall demonstrate that the extraction site will be designed to avoid river avulsion (the sudden separation of land from one property and its attachment to another, especially by flooding or a change in the course of a river). FEMA must approve the CLOMR prior to commencement of the use or breaking ground. Gravel mining operations or excavations are not permitted within one hundred feet (100 ft.) of the top of riverbank regardless of floodway or floodplain designation. Material stockpiles and permanently installed structures shall not be located within the regulatory floodway. (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)

(14) Bridges and Culverts: IDAPA 37.03.07 Rule 59 requires that communities participating in the NFIP must have 1.0 ft. freeboard above the 100-year flow. Thus, the low chord must be at least 1.0 ft. above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE). In an A Zone without BFE the BFE will be determined by a Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analysis the project applicant develops. The Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analysis with BFE will be provided to the community as a part of the Floodplain Development Permit. Upon completion of the project, the project applicant may be required to submit a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) application to FEMA. *Consult with the Idaho Department of Water Resources State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) should questions arise or interpretation be needed.* (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)

(c) *Standards for Floodplains without Established Base Flood Elevations*

Within the Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Zone A (also known as Unnumbered A Zones) and established in Section 10-14(b), where no Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data has been provided by FEMA, the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of Section 10-16 (a) shall apply:

The BFE used in determining the Flood Protection Elevation (FPE) shall be determined based on the following criteria:

- (1) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available from other sources, all new construction and substantial improvements within such areas shall also comply with all applicable provisions of this ordinance and shall be elevated or floodproofed in accordance with standards in Section 10-16 (a) and (b).
- (2) When floodway data is available from a Federal, State, or other source, all new construction and substantial improvements within floodway areas shall also comply with the requirements of Section 10-16 (b) and (e).

- (3) Require that all new subdivision proposals and other proposed developments (including proposals for manufactured home parks and subdivisions) greater than 50 lots or 5 acres, whichever is the lesser, include within such proposals base flood elevation data. Such Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data shall be adopted by reference in accordance with Section 10-14 (b) and utilized in implementing this ordinance. *The applicant/developer shall submit an application for a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) prior to Preliminary Plat approval and have obtained a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) prior to any building permits for structures being issued. (Optional)*

See FEMA 480 and/or FEMA 265 for further information.

- (4) When Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is not available from a Federal, State, or other source as outlined above, the lowest floor shall be elevated or floodproofed (non-residential) to two feet (2.0 ft.) above the Highest Adjacent Grade (HAG) at the building site or to the Flood Protection Elevation (FPE) whichever is higher, as defined in Section 10-13. All other applicable provisions of Section 10-16 (b) shall also apply.

- (d) Standards for Riverine Floodplains with Base Flood Elevations but without Established Floodways.

Along rivers and streams where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided by FEMA or is available from another source, but floodways are not identified for a Special Flood Hazard Area on the FIRM or in the FIS report, the following requirements shall apply to all development within such areas:

- (1) Standards of Section 10-16 (a) and (b); and
- (2) Until a regulatory floodway is designated, no encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, or other development shall be permitted unless certification with supporting technical data by a registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one foot at any point within the community.

- (e) Standards for Floodways.

Areas designated as floodways located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Section 10-14 (b). The floodways are extremely hazardous areas due to the velocity of floodwaters that have erosion potential and carry debris and potential projectiles. The following provisions, in addition to standards outlined in Section 10-16 (a) and (b), shall apply to all development within such areas:

- (1) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, and other developments shall be permitted unless:
 - a. it is demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase in the flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood, based on hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice and presented to the Floodplain Administrator prior to issuance of floodplain development permit (*This is a No-Rise Analysis & Certification*); or

- b. a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been approved by FEMA. A Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) must also be obtained within six months of completion of the proposed encroachment.
- (2) If Section 10-16 (e)(1) is satisfied, all development shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of this ordinance.
- (3) Manufactured homes (including tiny homes, and park models) may be permitted provided the following provisions are met:
 - a. the anchoring and the elevation standards of Section 10-16 (b)(3); and
 - b. the encroachment standards of Section 10-16 (e)(1).
- (4) Other Development in regulated floodways.
 - a. Fences that have the potential to block the passage of floodwaters, such as stockade fences and wire mesh fences, in regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 10-16 (e) of this ordinance.
 - b. Retaining walls, bulkheads, sidewalks, and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 10-16 (e) of this ordinance.
 - c. Roads and watercourse crossings, including roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings, and similar means for vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse to the other side, which encroach into regulated floodways, shall meet the limitations of Section 10-16 (e) of this ordinance. *The applicant/developer shall submit an application for a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) upon completion of construction for the purpose of providing FEMA better available data. (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)*
 - d. Drilling water, oil, and/or gas wells including fuel storage tanks, apparatus, and any equipment at the site that encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 10-16 (e) of this ordinance.
 - e. Docks, piers, boat ramps, marinas, moorings, decks, docking facilities, port facilities, shipbuilding, and ship repair facilities that encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 10-16 (e) of this ordinance
 - f. Gravel and sand and their subsequent extraction on lands within the Special Flood Hazard Area that encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 10-16 (e) of this ordinance. A Reclamation Plan Bond for LOMR shall be posted by the mine/property owner with City of Lewiston to cover the estimated costs of a Reclamation LOMR as determined by the mine/property owner and shall provide supporting documentation for the estimated LOMR cost. A Reclamation LOMR shall be completed within one year of the completion of mining. Upon failure of the property owner to obtain a Reclamation LOMR of the mining site within one year, the Reclamation Plan Bond for LOMR will be forfeited. (STATE RECOMMENDED BUT OPTIONAL)

Sec. 10-17. Variance and appeal procedures.

(a) Variance Procedures

Commented [M025]: delete obsolete language & insert current language

- (1) The Code Board of Appeals as established by the City of Lewiston, hereinafter referred to as the "appeal board", shall hear and decide requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance.
- (2) Variances may be issued for:
 - a. the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon the determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and that the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure;
 - b. functionally dependent facilities, if determined to meet the definition as stated in Section 10-13 of this ordinance, provided provisions of Section 10-17 (a)(8) b., c., and d., have been satisfied, and such facilities are protected by methods that minimize flood damages during the base flood and create no additional threats to public safety; or
 - c. any other type of development, provided it meets the requirements of this Section.
- (3) In passing upon variances, the appeal board shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified in other sections of this ordinance, and:
 - a. the danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;
 - b. the danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;
 - c. the susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of such damage on the individual owner;
 - d. the importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;
 - e. the necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as defined under Section 10-13 of this ordinance as a functionally dependent facility, where applicable;
 - f. the availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;
 - g. the compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;
 - h. the relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management program for that area;
 - i. the safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
 - j. the expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and
 - k. the costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems, and streets and bridges.
- (4) The applicant shall include a written report addressing each of the above factors in Section 10-17 (a)(3) a.-k. with their application for a variance.
- (5) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this ordinance, the appeal board may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes and objectives of this ordinance.
- (6) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice over the signature of a community official specifying the difference between the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) and the elevation to which the structure is to be built and that such construction below the BFE increases risks to life and property, and that the issuance of

a variance to construct a structure below the BFE may result in increased premium rates for flood insurance. Such notification shall be maintained with a record of all variance actions, including justification for their issuance.

(7) The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Insurance Administrator and the State of Idaho upon request.

(8) Conditions for Variances:

- a. Variances shall not be issued when the variance will make the structure in violation of other Federal, State, or local laws, regulations, or ordinances.
- b. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if the variance would result in any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge.
- c. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.
- d. Variances shall only be issued prior to development permit approval.
- e. Variances shall only be issued upon:
 - i. a showing of good and sufficient cause;
 - ii. a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship; and
 - iii. a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

(9) A variance may be issued for solid waste disposal facilities or sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities that are located in Special Flood Hazard Areas provided that all of the following conditions are met.

- a. The use serves a critical need in the community.
- b. No feasible location exists for the use outside the Special Flood Hazard Area.
- c. The lowest floor of any structure is elevated or floodproofed to at least the Flood Protection Elevation.
- d. The use complies with all other applicable Federal, State, and local laws.

(10) The {insert name of community} will notify the State NFIP Coordinator of the Idaho Department of Water Resources of its intention to grant a variance at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to granting the variance.

(11) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the appeal board may appeal such decision to the Court, as provided in Idaho Code 67-6535.

Commented [M026]: Delete outdated language, insert new required language

Sec. 10-18. - Corrective Procedures

(a) Violations to be Corrected. When the Floodplain Administrator finds violations of applicable State and local laws, it shall be his or her duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of the violation. The owner or occupant shall immediately remedy each of the violations of law cited in such notification.

(b) Actions in Event of Failure to Take Corrective Action. If the owner of a building or property shall fail to take prompt corrective action, the Floodplain Administrator shall give the owner

written notice, by certified or registered mail to the owner's last known address or by personal service, stating:

- (1) that the building or property is in violation of the floodplain management regulations;
- (2) that a hearing will be held before the Floodplain Administrator at a designated place and time, not later than ten (10) days after the date of the notice, at which time the owner shall be entitled to be heard in person or by counsel and to present arguments and evidence pertaining to the matter; and
- (3) that following the hearing, the Floodplain Administrator may issue an order to alter, vacate, or demolish the building; or to remove fill as applicable.

(c) Order to Take Corrective Action. If, upon a hearing held pursuant to the notice prescribed above, the Floodplain Administrator shall find that the building or development is in violation of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance, he or she shall issue an order in writing to the owner, requiring the owner to remedy the violation within a specified time period, not less than sixty (60) calendar days, nor more than 180 calendar days. Where the Floodplain Administrator finds that there is imminent danger to life or other property, he or she may order that corrective action be taken in such lesser period as may be feasible.

(d) Appeal. Any owner who has received an order to take corrective action may appeal the order to the local elected governing body by giving notice of appeal in writing to the Floodplain Administrator and the clerk within ten (10) days following issuance of the final order. In the absence of an appeal, the order of the Floodplain Administrator shall be final. The local governing body shall hear an appeal within a reasonable time and may affirm, modify, and affirm, or revoke the order.

(e) Failure to Comply with Order. If the owner of a building or property fails to comply with an order to take corrective action for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with an order of the governing body following an appeal, the owner shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished at the discretion of the court.

Commented [MO27]: Required for compliance with the NFIP

LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS

A. Effect on Rights and Liabilities under the Existing Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

This ordinance, in part, comes forward by re-enactment of some of the provisions of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance enacted {adoption date of the community's initial Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance} as amended, and it is not the intention to repeal but rather to re-enact and continue to enforce without interruption of such existing provisions, so that all rights and liabilities that have accrued thereunder are reserved and may be enforced. The enactment of this ordinance shall not affect any action, suit, or proceeding instituted or pending. All provisions of the Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance of {insert name of community} enacted on {adoption date of the community's initial Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance}, as amended, which are not reenacted herein are repealed.

B. Effect upon Outstanding Floodplain Development Permits

Nothing herein contained shall require any change in the plans, construction, size, or designated use of any development or any part thereof for which a Floodplain Development Permit has been granted by the Floodplain Administrator or his or her authorized agents before the time of passage of this ordinance. Provided, however, that when construction is not begun under such outstanding permit within a period of 180 days subsequent to the date of issuance of the outstanding permit, construction or use shall be in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance.

C. Severability

The ordinance is hereby declared to be severable. Should any portion of this ordinance be declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall be read to carry out the purpose(s) of the ordinance before the declaration of partial invalidity.

Section D. Effective Date

This ordinance shall become effective {insert date; based upon adoption, or a specific date; or passage and publication as provided by law}.

Enacted by the {Board, Council, etc.} as an ordinance of the {insert name of community} on the ____ day of _____, 202__.

Approved by {insert name and title of chief elected official} on the ____ day of _____, 202__.

{INSERT NAME OF COMMUNITY}

{insert name and title of chief elected official}

ATTEST:

{insert name of clerk}, {City/County} Clerk

Commented [M028]: Mandatory language